190, AP PENDTIX, Pazelll

" What were the dimenfions of the room in which
the Rajah Nundocomar was confined ?

Nundocomar had-two rooms, which had belonged
to the gaoler and his family, who gave them up for
his accommodation. I cannot recolle the exatt di-
menfions; but as near as I can, I think they were
about 1§ feet fquare each. :

How were they floored ?

The inner room, in which Nundocomar refided,
was boarded. I am not fure whether the outer room,
where his fervants refided, was boarded or pot. It
was either boarded or terraffed, : '

Are you fure it was not boarded ?
No,

Do you know of what caft the fervants of Nundo-
comar were?

No.

Did you enquire ?
1 did not.

Did any ong, from Sir Elijah Impey enquire ?
Not that I know of.

What provifion was made for drefing his viGuals
before the Pundits were confulted ? _ ;
I do not know of any, except that there was a fire
. place in the outer room.
No complaint -

was ever made What fort of 2 fire- p]ace ?

by Nundocomar  Guch ag is wfual in that country,
of the rcom be-

ing boarded, of the caft of his fervants, or any want of accemmodation for them, nor of
the fire-plate, or want of proper convenience for cooking.
' Ufual to whom ?

I fpeak of the ufage of Europeans. I know no-
thing,of the ufage of the natives,

Was any enquiry made on that fubje& ?
. Not that I know of.
;'}:g‘“:;;;‘:; Were not the Pundits you fpeak of officers of the.
foch oficers,  Supreme Court, and paid:as fuch ¢
The Pundirs did y Ll
pot become part of the eflablithment of the Coure, till 3d Feb. 1777. Vide Confuleations
of that date. The Court never had more than two Puadits, Four were confulted.

Appendix 1. No. 15,
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I believe they were, 5{» m!diwhlt
. isman faid be-
Were they not removeable at the pleafure of the fore that Com«
T oo e
I do not know whether they were or not—1I fhould i the Houfe of
prefume they were. : Lords?

Did they confult the learned Bramins at Kifhnagur,
or any other eminent college of Pundits in Bengal ?
Not that I know of.

Did they confult the Pundit Bramins that were then
aflembled at Calcutta, for the purpofe of making a
digeft of the Gentoo laws?

1 do not know whom they confulted,

How foon did the Puadits deliver theiropinions after
they were confulted ?

I believe the objefion of the prifoner to eat and
drink was made known to the Judges the eighth of
May, by a meffage from the Council delivered by the
theriff; it was on the fame day, to the beft of my re-
colle@ion, that the Pundits delivered their opinion,

Did they ftate how expiation was to be made for
any irregularities in food, in cafe the Mahah Rajah was
hanged ?

ot that I recolleét.

Then an extra& from the report of the Committee ta
whom the petition of John Touchet and John
Irving, agents for the Britith fubjects refiding in
the provinces of Bengal, Bahar, and Oriffa, and
their feveral dependencies, was referred, was here
dire&ed to be inferted.

¢ (*) There being at this time a Bramin in
¢ England who is & fubject of a Gentoggo-
¢ vernment, your committec judging it to be
¢ the moft authentic fource of information con-
¢ cerning the ufages and religion of the Hin~
¢ doos, requefted bis attendance ; and the par-
¢ ticulars of his examidation being interpreted

® Read I"wlm pages §2, §3y S+ of the fuld Revort, b
(4
Y
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ALPPENDIX.  Paxrlih

by Charles William Boughton Roufe, Efq;
a member of ydur committee, are—That is
mame is Honwontrow—T hat he comes from
Poonah, a Gentoo government, of which
-Sittarah is the capital—That it is governed
by the Pefhwah, who is a2 Bramin—That he
is come to England on the part of Ragonaut
Row, with letters to the King and the Eaft
India Company—That he is a Bramin—
That his caft as well as all others is obliged
to obferve particular rules and modes of life
—That the obje@ of worfhip is alike to all
cafts ; but that there are many feéts and
diftin&ions, each of which has its-peculiar
rules.—That there are four principal cafts,
and within thefe there are a great many
others; and that it is. criminal for any
Gentoo to tranfgrefs the rules of his particu-
lar caft—That he may lofe his caft entirely ;
or, according to the nature of the offence,
it may admit of expiation.—Then being
afked, Whether fome of thefe expiations are
not expenfive and tréublefome? he faid,
Without expence and trouble, how can exa
piation be made ? That it would be propor~
tionable to the crime ; fof inftance, brimhat-
ter, or killing of a2 Bramin; ftrehatta, or the
killing of a woman ; barhatta, or the killing
of a child; gowhatta, or the killing of a
cow ; ar¢ the four great offences that require
the moft rigorous expiations ; and the degree
of criminality is nearly alike——That he muft
make one diftin@ion, that it can only be
done by confent and dire&ion of learned
Bramins—That in cafe of a rich perfon, the
cxpiation is large fums given in charity ; if
of low condition, long pilgrimages, as far as
twelve years, without fthoes, and naked feet,
would be enjoined==That by the laws and
cuftoms of the Gentoos a Bramin might
pofibly commit fuch.a crime 28 to incur the
punifament of decath, for inflance, wilful

murder ;
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U mubrdtr ;bal:ut there is one thing, 77 rs mot Thereisndthing
¢ right to bung a Bramin: if be is to be put o ¥ 2OUSO®
¢ death, it fhould be with a j:{;rd.-—m thepfamc :ll:iea m“fl:‘i:?n;‘
¢ time the witnefs added, That he never heard of the petitionsa
¢ of an inftance in which, under an Hindoo giﬁ;&;f
¢ government, a Braminewas put to death. complsints or
¢ Then being afked, Whether there is any petitions of
¢ other crime befides wilful murder, for which N jiccomar s
a Bramin can be punifhed with death? he guence of fuffer-
faid, The prince may take his life for fome ing death by
great breach of truft, or crime againft the LpEag 27
ftate; but hanging would not be the punifh- tween that death
ment—The punifhment of death is not in- and death by the
flicted for fmaller matters ; but what other weeds:
crimes can merit death ?—That hanging is, by
the Hindoos, confidered as a great pollutiony
and further, it is the belief of the Hindoos, that
a man who fuffers death by the fword bas pardon
< for his offences 5 but if he dies by the halter, bhe
€ dies with bis fins upon bim—That a perfon
¢ dying by fuicidc or by the halter, cannot have yypiocomar's
bi:ﬁm:rai rites prgformed—-—ﬁar the Jﬂdy qfa funerzl rites
hanged Bramin is jfo polluted, that another will ¥or© performed,
not touch it.—And being afked the particular ;4. appendix
reafon, the witnefs faid, How can I tell you to Mr. Francis’s
the reafons for it? fuch is our ancient re- defence, the lat
¢ ligion. It is a general principle of fairh,“c;.}i:r;nd;:,“
¢ that an Hindoo fhiould die placed upon the delivesed tothe
¢ earth,—Being afked, Whether there are nntE"":i?, to e
¢ crimes by which Hindoos may lofe their caft """
¢ he faid, There are; for inftance, that he,
¢ being a Bramin, could not eat any thing
prepared by the hands of the Perfee (who was
then fitting by him), that if he did he thould
lofe his caft ; and that if he had done it of
¢ ‘his own free will, it could not be expiated ;
¢ thar, though a Geutoo fthould have refifted,
< if he be forced violemly into an alk of im=
¢ purity, it will reft with the ¥earned Bramins,
¢ whether to reftore him to his caft again, or-
¢ pote=~That they can do mothing in it but by

O ¢ the
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ALPPENDIX Pare I
by Charles William Boyghton Roufe, Efg;

a member of ydut commitiee, are—That is
name is Honwontrow—T hat he comes from
Poonah, a Gentoo government, of which
‘Sittarah is the capital—That it is governed
by the Pefhwah, who is a Bramin—That he
is come to England on the part of Ragonaut
Row, with letters to the King and the Eaft
India Company—That he is 2 Bramin—
That his caft as well as all others is obliged
to obferve particular rules and modes of life
—TThat the obje® of worfhip is alike to all
cafts ; but that there are many fets and
diftin&@ions, each of which has its peculiar
rules—That there are four principal cafts,
and within thefe there are a great many
others; and that it is. criminal for any
Gentoo to tranfgrefs the rules of his particu-
lar caft—That he may lofe his caft entirely ;
or, according to the nature of the offence,
it may admit of expiation,—Then being
afked, Whether fome of thefe expiations are
not expenfive and troublefome! he faid,
Without expence and trouble, how can ex-
piation be made ? ‘That it would be propor-
tionable to the crime ; fo inftance, brimhat-
ter, or killing of a Bramin; flrehatta, or the
killing of a woman ; barhatta, or the killing
of a child; gowhatta, or the killing of a
cow 3 are the four great offences that require
the moft rigorous expiations ; and the degree
of criminality is nearly alike—That he muft
make one diftin@ion, that it can only be
done by confent and' dire&ion of learned
Bramins—That in cafe of a rich perfon, the
cxpiation is large fums given in charity ; if
of low condition, long pilgrimages, as far as
twelve years, without fhoes, an§ naked feer,
wonld be enjoined==That by the laws and
cuftoms of the Gentoos a Bramin might
poflibly commit fach a crime as to incur the
punithment of death, for inflance, wilful

¢ murder;
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mu;‘der ;ﬁtut there is one thing, 72 is mot Thereisndthing
right to bimg a Bramin: if be is to be put to 0 ONIore
death, it fhould be with [ufmd._m the fame e st
time the witnefs added, That he never heard of the petitiona
of an inftance in which, under an Hindoo';'ﬁ;ﬁ:&;"-‘
government, a Braminewas put to death. complsints or
Then being afked, Whether there is any petitions of
other crime befides wilful murder, for which N\ paccomar s
a Bramin can be punifhed with death? he quence of fuffer
faid, The prince tnay take his life for fomeingdeath by
great breach of truft, or crime againft the hpEae 27
ftate; but hanging would not be the punifh. tween that desth
ment—The punifhment of death is not in- 2nd death by the
flited for fmaller matters ; but what other g

crimes can merit death ?—That hanging is, by

the Hinaoos, confidered as a great pollution;

and further, it is the belief of the Hindoos, that

a man who fuffers death by the fword bas pardon
Sfor bis offences 5 but if he dies by the balter, he

dies with bis fins upon him—That a perfon

¢ dying by fuicide or by the balter, cannot have y,n40c0mar's
¢ bis funeral rites performed—That the body of a funensi rites

€ hanged Bramin is fo polluted, that another wil] were performeds
not touch it.—And being afked the particular v, appendix
reafon, the witnefs faid, How can I tell you to Mr. Francis's
the reafons for it! fuch is our ancient re- defence,thelaft -
ligion, It is a general principle of failh,u(;.'!:‘tboij“
that an Hindoo fhould die placed upon the detivered tothe
carth,— Being afked, Whether there are not Bramin to be
crimes by which Hindoos may lofe their caft 2 """

he faid, There are; for inftance, that he,

being a Bramin, could not eat any thing

prepared by the hands of the Perfee (who was

then fitting by him), that if he did he fhould

lofe his cait ; and that if he had done it of

bis own free will, it could not be expiated ;
“thar, though a Gentoo thould have refifted,

if he be forced violently into an alk of im-

purity, it will reft with the Jearned Bramins,

whether to reftore him to his caft again, or-
pot==That they can do nothing in it but by

[O] ¢ the
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This thows dif-
ferent cuftoms
prevail in dif-
ferent parts of
India with re-

gard to Bramins.

None of thefe
obje&ions were
ever made by
Nundocomar
himfelf,

A.‘F PENDI X: Parr IIL.

¢ the arder of the Shafter—That they can eat

¢ only the things that are permitted them by
¢ the rules of their caft—that he has heard the
¢ Bramins of Canooge eat fome kinds of fleth ;
¢ but that if the Bramins in his country eat
¢ meat, they would lofe their cat—That a
¢ Bramin cannot eat bis food unlefs prepared by
¢ another Bramin—that if he fhould eat food
¢ dreflizd by a perfon of another caft, it would
¢ be an impurity.—That indulgences would be
¢ allowed to perfons under an extreme illnefs,
¢ or fuch hunger as might take away power of
¢ judgment; but that if he fhould only be
* hungry, and had the power of diftinguithing
¢ perfons, no deviation from rule would be
¢ allowed.—Being afked, Whether there are
¢ any diftin&ions as to veflels or places of
¢ cookery ! he faid, There are; that for in-
¢ {tance, he could not drefs his food at the fire
¢ in the room where he was then fitting—nor
¢ could be drefs it in borrowed veffels—mnor could be
¢ drefs it upon a wooden floor, but if there was
¢ a fpan of earth upon the floor, he might,—
¢ That if a man of another caft, or of no caft,
¢ was to touch him at his meals, or whilft he
¢ was dreffing his food, or was to enter into
¢ the fpace allotted by him for the drefling his
¢ food, he fhould be obliged to throw away the
¢ victuals; and if an Ha%lachore, or man of no
¢ caft, fhould come into the room where his
¢ victuals were, the whole houfe muft be
¢ wafhed before he could. eat in it again—
¢ That if in the open air an Hallachore fhouid
¢ touch bim, he fhould be obliged to wath
¢ himfelf.——~That fome cafts weuld be ob-
¢ liged to wath their cloaths and body, athers
¢ only their body; and fome low cafts would
¢ not be obliged to wath at all.—And being

s ¢ afked, Whether he had not fuffered great

¢ difficulties in the journey from his own
¢ country to England? He faid, Yes, very
[ ¢ great;
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great; that from Bombay to Mocha, ithough This may fling
the voyage lafted 27 days, be never eat any :hf:‘:,‘,:",‘::i::
thing but what he brought with him, fuch been a Bramia.
as fweetmeats and preferved fruits, and pump- It is not only the
kins and vegetables, and drank the water he f;;ﬁf:,:::h":,:;f;
brought with him, and never tafted any food prevent s Bramia
dreft on board the {hip. That when he ar~ ¢f Hindoo, even
rived at Judda, the Governor, who is a [ owe @b

, - performing
Mahomedan, examined his baggage, and fuch a voysge,
ordered him into confinement in the fame "'il;""“' “‘I{‘ °'&
houfe with the Perfees; that the Governor f.,'wi’dﬁ,’,:;‘,"';;f,
fent him vituals two or three times every be loft by the
day; but for two whole days he neither eat necetlary pollu-
nor drank any thing; that they were fur- :.,",fr;.:,::efn
prifed at his not eating, when they had fent the evacoation
him fo good a dinner ; and that after fome of bis natursl |
difficulty he made them underftand, by means (he fes. Guani-
of a boy who fpoke his language, that being fsm Dofs, who
a Bramin, he could not eat their viGuals; {27 o Ene-
that when Le inftrufled them what his cuf- Gr.h‘:m. ot
toms required, they furnifhed him with a hiscaft by this
tent, and other neceflary conveniencies for 1’1':::’:";:::::":‘“
drefling his viQuals, which he then did with he afterwards :
his own hand.» Being afked, What is their turned Chritt-
mode of confinement of a debtor? He faid, -7 h:zth;;
in the firft place, it is not ufual to confine chis means, loft
them; but if the perfon fhould be refraltory, bit e, accord-

and difobey the arders of the magiftrate for ;}ﬁ;‘:';‘l;;:;
difcharging the debt, perhaps he would place is Bengal, he
a guard upon his houfe ; if his debts amount- would have "
ed to more than his effedts, the magiftrate :':F:m'::i o
would then order diftribution, but he never his tefimony
touches the images or ornaments of the place “;r“‘ed have f;:,
of worthip, or of the apartmenis of the wo- mas'sor far.
men and children, nor the furniture of the ther; he fays,
houfe; and that the guard (uffers nobody to 1° becomes h
go in or out without his permiffion § but that conpgered e
it is not the bufinefs of th!e guard to prevent desd, nd his
the vituals coming in, unlefs he bas a fpecial fncral nites are
order from the mnggiﬁme, for the bufinefs of "?-;";:M
the guard is to prevent any thing being car-
ried out ; that if the perfon has committed a

[O] 2 ¢ crime,
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crime, and the magiftrate wifhes to difcharge,
him, he may give fuch an order; that he
muit not, even in that cafe, difgrace the wo=
men. That it fometimes happens, that a
Prince prefles a Zemindar for payment of his
rents, and fends a guard upon his houfe ; that
if the Zemindar is abfent, and has not the
money to pay, he abfconds; but then the
guarél will not do any thing to affect his wo-
men ; that if he (hould feize the property of
a Zemindar, it would not be juftifiable to
touch his religious ornaments, or his wo-
men’s apartments; that befides, nothing is
got by ruining a Zemindar, who is the para-
mount proprietor of the land. Being afked,
What dealings are allowed to the Bramins?
He f{did, he is prohibited from trading in
falt, (pirituous liquors, oil, butter, fhoes, and
from low trades; that an Hindoo is obliged
to wafh in a tank, or river, at lealt once a
day; that wathing in a river is beft; if he
cannot do that, he muft wath in a tank, or
with water, in his own houfe; that not to
wafh at all would bt an impurity ; that he
cannot eat without, except in cafe of fick-
nefs, That if an Hindoo is excluded his
caft, be is difgraced, and becomes Hallachore,
and is confidered by his family as dead ; that
even his funeral rites are performed, and his
face is never to be feen afterwards, That
the Hindoos confider the water of the Ganges
as facred, and vow to wafh in it on parti-
cular occafions; that long pilgrimages are
confidered as expiations; that the inferior
cafts of Hindoos pay refpeét to the fuperior;
to a Bramin particularly the higheft; that
wealth is nothing in competition with that
degree of rank; that the low people may
drink. the water in which a fuperior has
wathed his feet—that he himfelf would drink,

~ ¢ and think it would be right to do it, of the

water in which a Bramin, learned in their
¢ books,
3
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books, has wafhed his feet; but it would be
a difgrace to the Bramin to fuffer Hallachores
or bafe peopls to do it.—Being afked, Whe-
ther the lower cafls are not much offended.
when they fee the higher, fuch as the Bra-
min, treated with indignity and difrefpe&, or
whether they are pleafed i—He faid, If a
Rajahpout fees an indignity offered to a Bra-
min, he will rifk his life to protet him—that
even the loweft cafts of Hindoos would not
be pleafed to fee 2 Bramin degraded—that
what 2 Mahomedam might think upon it, he
does not know,— The witnefs further faid,
That under a Gentoo government, the charges
of recovering a debt are a fourth part, which
goes to the magiftrate, and makes part of the
public revenue~=T hat in his country women
are not fo much fecluded as among the Ma-
homedans; but it would be a difgrace if they
went into courts of juftice.—That if be had
guefts at his houfe his wife might come in
with the vidtuals, but could not fit down
with men,—That he has heard that the Ra-
jahpouts and>people of Bengal confine their
women more than the Marattas—that they
will not permit them, particularly thofe of
rank, to be feen.~~That in bis country the
mode of recovering a debt from a woman is
for the magiftrate 1o fend to her to fatisfy the
creditor ; if fhe refufes he orders her, if fhe
be 2 woman of charalter, to be brought to
his houfe—the is carried in a covered car-
riage, and received by his women, but is
never compelled to attend the caufe in a
public court; and even if the magiftrate
himfelf {peaks to her there will be a curtain
between them.—Ide. faid alfo, That it is
ufual for women ih his country to burn
themifelveson the funeral pile of their huf-
bands—and that the cuftom prevails alfo in
Bengal, and other parts of [idoRan,’

[O]3 Then

197



F

APPENDIX. Parcr III,

Then the witnefs was afked,

What report did Dr. Murchifon make when he re-
turned, after having feen Nunducomar in prifon ?

I beg to refer to an affidavit made by Dr. Murchifon
on that {ubject,

-

The faid affidavit is as follows :

¢ (*) This deponent, Kenneth Murchifon,
¢ furgeon, maketh oath, and faith, That on
or about Wednefday, the tenth of May, one
thouland feven hundred and feventy-five, Sir
Elijah Impey, Kbnight, requefted him, this
deponent, to go to the gaol in which Maha
Rajah Nundcomar was then confined, and to
report to him the faid Sir Elijah the ftate and
condition of the health of the faid Nund-
comar; that in confequence of the faid re-
queft, he the faid deponent went to the faid
gaol, where he found the faid Nundcomar
extended on the gound, in a feemingly weak
and helplels condition; that the faid Nund-
comar (as the interpreter told this deponent)
declared that he had<received no manner of
fuftenance fince the Saturday next preceding
that day; and that the faid Nundcomar
fpoke: in a low and feeble voice.~And this
deponent further faid, That be felt the pulfe of
the faid Nundcomar, that bis pulfe appeared to
him not weak but regular, and not as be fhould
bave expeited in a man who had fafted fo long,
And this deponent further faith, That he dues not
mean to fay that he bad not fafted that length of
€ time; but zf be bad really fafled fo long, it was
¢ an exiraordinary cafe, and inconfifient with the
¢ fymptoms which in the beft of his judgment be-
¢ lteves muff bave appeared. And this deponent
¢ further faith, ¥ hat on bis return to Sir Eli-
¢ jah, he made his report to the effeét above

L T T I O O T I T T T P T )

® Read from the fame Appendi.
¢ mentioned ;
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¢ mentioned ; and further acquainted the faid
¢ Sir Elijah, that if in fa& he had not eat or
¢ drank during the time above mentioned, it
¢ was neceflary he fhould take fuftenance be-
¢ fore the next morning.

¢« KENNETH MURCHISON.’

¢ Sworn this 17th day of January
¢ 1776, before me,
¢ E. ImpEY.

‘Then the witnefs was afked,

Was any one with the Maha Rajzh in the fame
room ?

No other prifoner ; his fervants occafionally attended
him ; the rooms eccupied by him and his fervants were quite
detached from the refi of the prifon, on the oppofite fide of

an area.

Woere the rooms purified after the gaoler and his fa-
mily had left them ?

They were entirely cleaned out, and all his furni-
ture removed.— T he Sheriff snd myf(elf frequently went
to the prifoner, who expreffed himfelf fatishied with the
conduét of the gaoler, in tolen of which he gave him,
before his execution, a valuable ring.

Who is Do&or Murchifon ?

He is a furgeon in the fervice of the Eaft India Com-
pany, and was the medical gentleman who attended Sir
Efijah Impey’s family.

Was he not a dependant on Sir Elijah Impey, and
under his immediate patronage ?

He came out furgeon in the fame fhip with the
Judges, and was patronized by him.

Did he not live in Sir Elijah Impey’s houfe ?
1 believe not ; he was very often at his table,

Did he not procure by Sir Elijah Impey’s means

fome confiderable advantage in Oude or elfewhere?
I have heard that his being fent to Oude was con-
fiderably owing to the intesference of Sir Elijah Impey
[O) 4 in
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in his favour, but I do not know of my own know-
ledge, but I believe it. This was fome time aftere
wards, I do not recolleét particularly when.

Do you not know whether, on the fame day that
Mr. Murchifon was appointed, two other gentlemen,
a Mr. Gody, who was furgeon of the fhip that Ge-
neral Clavering came out in, and a Mr. Harwood,
were not allo appointed to the fervice of the Nzbob
Vizier ; and whether all thefe appointments were not
made in confequence of an application from the Nabob
for three furgeons ?

1 was acquainted with Mr. Gody, and recolle&
hearing cf his appointment, and that he went to Oude.
—The third gentleman mentioned I do not recolledt,
not having heard of his appointment, nor do I recollect
that the three appointments were on the fame day, nor
have heard whether it was at the requifiticn of the Na-
bob. ' Mr. Gody was the furgeon of the thip General
Clavering came out in.

How old was you at the time of Nundocomar’s
trial ?
About twenty years and a half,

Did you then hold any other office but that of deputy
Sheriff?

I was appointed one of the fworn clerks in equity on
the refignation of Mr. Newman, which I think was
before the trial.

On whofe recommendation had you that appoint-
ment ! ’
On an application to all the Judges.

To altequally ?
They all concurred in it.

Who propoffed it to them !
T applicd firft to the Chief Juftice, and then to the
other Judges. ' '
i)ﬁilgidyou go out with Sir Elijah Impey ?
ids

‘Had
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Had you been admitted an attorney in England?.
I had not.

What other offices did you afterwards hold ?

I was afterwards in partoerfhip with Mr. Nailer,
who two years afterwards was made attorney to the
Eaft India Company. Some time afterwards 1 was
made joint attorney to the Eaft [ndia Company with
him, and on his death fucceeded him as their attorney
on record. [ had no other appointment.

Who recommended you to be attorney to the Com-
pany?

The occafion of my being appointed attorney to the
Company firft of all was, Mr. Nailer’s being commit-
ted for a contempt of the Court; and I received that
appointment without having applied for it, or without
any particular recommendation.

Was you not partner with Mr, Nailer when he was
committed for the contempt;
I was.

Did you hear any reafon affigned why the whole of
the blame and punithment came to fall upon Mr,

Nailer ? 5
The reafon was, that the whole bufinefs which in-

curred the blame and punifhment had been done by
him.

How came you, being Mr. Nailer’s partner, to have
nothing to do with it? ]

We had a great deal of bufinefs, and we divided it
between us. He being immediately the Company’s
attorney, was generally the perfon who tranfacted that
part of the bufinefs in which the Company were con-
cerned.

What was the falary of your office, as attorney to the
Company! )

The attorney to the Company, I believe, as fuch,
had 300 rupees a month.

' ther allowance or emoluments ?
a:: m: :;ﬁtobills on the Company for the bufinefs

done for them, and were allowed ong third :;;borq
an
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than the bills, which allowance was latterly ftruck
U&‘. . | *

To what did your bills amount, one year with an-
other?
I fubmit whether I thould anfwer that queftion; as
not appearing to be applicable to the charge.
And the witnefs was diredted to withdraw,

And being again called in;

The queftion was repeated.

c.very fum reccived, from the eftablitbment of the
Court down to March 1780, by the Company’s attor-
pey, is ftated in the general appendix t6 the report on
Touchet’s petition, N° 40, bills and fzlary included.
I continued their attorney till December 1780, but X
do not recolle&t the particular fums received bétween
March and December 1780—That account is figned
by the accountant general, and I have no doubt is core
redl.

Whether the paper you faw in Mr. Juftice Le
Maiftre’s hand, purporting to be a draft or copy of the
indi@ment, was altogether in Mr. Juftice Le Maiftre’s
hand, or interlined, or otherwife corrected i -

1 have a very imperfe& recolle@ion of the paper;
and not fuch as enables me to anfwer the queftion.

Recolleét yourfelf, was there not fome other hand-
writing on the paper?

1 have no recolleition of any other hand-writing on
the paper.

Do you recolle@ where you firft faw it?
I do not.

Are you fure that it was not given to you by Sir Eli»
jah Impey?
. Iam.

How do you kknow that, as you do not recolle& how
it came into your hands?

I have not faid that it came into my hands. I have
fome idea of having feen fuch a paper; had I had. it in

my
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my pofleflion, I thould have recoMe@ed more of it.—]
cannot recolle@ when I faw it, nar with whom.

~ Whether Sir Elijah [mpey and Mr. Juftice-Le Maiftre
did not live on terms of great intimacy and apparent
confidence ! '
I have no other mode of colle&ing the intimacy be-
tween them, than from their vifiting each other fre-
quently; but Sir Elijab Impey was not more intimate with
Mr. Fuflice Le Maifire than with the other Judpes, 1
think not fo much fo, as their habits of life were not fo fimi-
lar.  Mr. Le Maiftre was in India without his family,
the other Judges bad their fumilies with them.

Whether you do not know for certain that Mr. Le
Maiftre had a very particylar confidence in Sir Elijah
Impey’s fuperior knowledge in his profeffion, above his
own?

I do not,

Was it generally believed that he had?
Noj=not that he had any particular confidence.

Have you reafon to believe that Mr. Le Maiftre
would have ventured to make the draft of a very criti-
cal indiétment, without'confulting Sir Elijah Impey ?

I am by no means certain, and indeed have confi-
derable doubts, whether Mr, Le Maiftre did make the
draft—but if he did, 1 have mat the leafi reafon to believe,
nor do I think that the Chief Fuflice had any knowledge of
it

Did you live a great deal in the family of Sir Elijah
Impey in 1775, and till you left India?

I did. '

Did you know the late Mr. Alexander Elliot?

Yes.

Was Mr. Elliot very intimate with Sir Elijah Im-

pey? .

He was very intimate.

Woas it fuppofed there way a particular friendfhip be-
tween Mr. Elliot and Sir Elijah Impey ?

h i
There was, What

203
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What was the general chara&er of Mr. Elliot amengft
the gentlemen in Bengal ? S F

One of the highefl charaélers I ever knew a man to pof-
Jefs s and 1 believe the moft defervedly and the mofl univer-
fally given.

Did not Mr, Elliot att as interpreter on the trial of
Nundocomar? -

Yes.

Did you ever hear Mr. Elliot exprefs any difappro-
bation of the proceedings on the triai?

1 did not=Ie affifted me very much in compiling
the trial afterwards.

Do you conceive that there was any diminution in
the friend(hip of Sir Elijah Impey and Mr. Elliot after
that trial ? :

Not the leait,

From the idea you entertain of the charaller of Mr.
Elliot, do you think that if Mr. Elliot had conceived
the éxecution of Nundocomar was a legal murder, that
he would not have broken off all connetiion with Sir
Elijah Impey?

Certainly—17 think Mr. Ellfet would not have under-
taken to carvy the trial heme, which I underflood be did, if
be had thought that the Court had alted wrong in the courfe
of the trial.— s I underfiand that the intention of fending
it by him, inflead of trufling to any other channel, was,
that he who bad fo complete a knowledge of the bufinefiy
might clear up any mifreprefentation that fhould be made con~
teraing i,

How do you know that Mr, Elliot did bring the trial
to England? -

I have heard it mentioned that it was to be delivered
to him, and on bis return from Europe pe called on me,
and in the courfe of bis comverfation mentioned that be bad
bad it printed.

Did Mr. Elliot alfo bring home the trials of Roy
Rada Churn and My, Fowke?
He did,

Was
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. Was you in Court when M. Haftings and General
Cl;\:.eﬂng were examined at the trial?
cs.

Did you recollect Mr. Haffings giving in evidence upon
oath, that e had no concern direlly or indireddly in the pro=
Jecution of Nundocomar ? )

1 wraote the trial foon ofter it had paffed, when the im-
preffion of what bad paffed remained firong upon my mind.
— 1t appears 1o be part of Mr. Haflings's evidence, but
1 do not particularly recollect ir.'

~ Was there any particular conredion between Mr.
Haftings ard Mr. Elliot?
There was,

Was there a great friendfhip between them ?
I believe a great friendfhip, :

Do you know what was the caufe of Mr. Elliot’s
going to England in 1775 ? 4

1 underftood that he went on fome particular bufi-
nefs of Mr. Haftings’s; but I do not know the nature
of it. -

Was there any intercqurfe kept up between Sir Elijah
Impey and Mr, Francis?
There was.

After the condemnation of Nundocomar, did all in-
tercourfe ceafe between them ? :
It did not.

Did it continue as before, or did that circumftance
make any alteration in the intimacy between them?
It continued down to the time of my leaving India.

. Were they mere vifits of ceremony that paffed, o
did they apprar fociable ?
They appeared friendly vifits.
Who was the Sheriff in 1775?
Mr. Macrabie.
‘What was he? . . o
He was brother-in-law to Mr. Francis, and lived in
his family, '
Did
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Did Mr. Macrabie ever mention to you, that he
thought Nundocomar was treated with feverity by the

Jug%;uz

o.
What time did you quit India?
In December 1780. :

Whether any circumftances had happened previous
to your quitting India, which caufed a fufpenfion of
that intimacy which fubfifled between Mr. Francis and
Sir Elijah Impey?

There was a (uit againft Mr, Francisin the Supreme
Court, in which there was a judgment againft himi,
which, I beliecve, for a time fufpended the vifits be-
tween them, "

Were the Judges divided upon that judgment ?
They wete,

How were they divided ?

Sir Robert Chambers was of one opinion, and the
Chief Juftice and Mr. Hyde of another. Mr. Le Maiftre
was dead at that time,

Do you know whether thete was any intimacy be-
tween Mr. Le Mailtre and Mr. Francis after the con-
demnation of Nundocomar?

I had no opportunity of obferving it myfelf, but I
have underftood they were often in company together.

You have faid firft that there was an intercourfe—
then, that there was an intimacy between Sir Elijah
Impey and Mr. Francis ;=—on what faéls do you affert
that there was an intimacy between thofe perfons?

I have feen Mr. Francis very frequently at Sir Elijah
Impey’s houfe on fociable terms, fuch as did not ap-
pear to me vifits of ceremony. As to other faét I cun
only recolleé& one inftance, which was that of a gen-
tleman being fent up the country in confequence of an
application from Lady Impey to Mr. Francis, through
Mr. Francis’s intereft, and that was a Mr. Edwards.

Do you mean to affert that Mr. Francis's compli-
ance with the requeft of Lady Impey or any other proof
he
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he could give of any refpect for her Ladyfhip, was an
unqueftionable proof of any intimacy with her hufband,
meaning by intimacy, friendfhip with her hufband?

I have mentioned the circumftance to the Com-
mittee, how far it will warrant fuch an inference is a
matter of opinion.—1 did not mean to fay, or to give
the Committee to underftand, nor did I fay, there was
any friendfhip between Mr. Francis anll Sir Elijah Im-
pey, but that their vifits did not appear to me to be
ceremonious,

Do you mean to affert thiat after the judgment given
in the fuit againft Mr, Francis, he and Sir Elijah Impey
did never dine or fup together at the houfe of either of
them, or at other places as before?

I do not—I think the contrary, and that I bave feen
Mr. Francis at Sir Elijah Impey's after that, -

In the trial of the fuit againft Mr. Francis were the
fadts tried, the judgment pronounced, and the damages
affefled by two of the Judges, in dire@ contradiction
to the clear, pofitive, explicit, and argued opinion of
the other Judge?

The indi@ment was given contrary to the opinion of
Sir Robert Chambers, for which diffent he gave his
reafons at length,

Did riot Sir Elijah Impey and Mr. Juftice Hyde give
their reafons for their judgment at large ?

Sir Elijah Impey did—But I do not recolle& Mr.
Hyde did more than concur in his opinion,.—I was at-
torney for Mr. Francis in this caufe, and after the judg-
ment, which he was difatisfied with, I had inftruétions
to draw a petition of appeal, which I accordingly drew,
with the affiftance of the counfel in the caufe—=This
petition was fent to Mr. Francis, and returned to me,
with his determination not to appeal,

How old was Mr. Elliot at the time of Nundocomar’s
trial?
1 don’t know, he appeared to be about three-and-

twenty,

Have you ever heard that he was bred to the law in
any

107
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any branch, or pfadifed in any branch of that profef-
fion? LA
I never heeird he was, nor do I believe it.

On what ground do you, who a&ed ag an attorney,
chufe voluntarily to reveal the fecrets of your client? -

I thought the queftion called for an explanation of
what I knew copcerning the tranfalion,

What appeared to you to be the particular queftion
that called for that explanation?
The queftion to which the-explanation was given.

And then the witnefs was dire@ed to withdraw.
And being again called in;

He was afked,

Whether the Pundits fent to Nundocomar belonged
to the Court or the government? -

I think they were the Pundits of the court, but I am
not cerrain, ;

Whether during the trial of Nundocomar you re-
marked any inftances of partiality in the Chief Juftice
in faveur of the profecuticn, or any leaning againft the

prifoner?

I did not,

Do you recolleét the circumftance of the witnefs Kif-
fen Juan Dofs being called in at the particular requeft
of the prifoner, at the end of the trial ?

- Ido:

Do you think, from the manmir in which that witnefs
gave bis lafi evidence, that the obfervations of the Chicf
Fuftice on the witnefs's teflimony were well founded?

I prefume the queftion is confined to the difference
of the condu@ in the witnefs when he wes laft called,
and on his former examination—it was fa remarkable,
that it could wot efcape the obfervation of any perfon who
bad feen bim give bis former evidence.  And I think the
Cbhicf Fuftice's remarks upon it were well founded., '

What was your age at'the time?
. Twenty years and an half,

In
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In what figuation was you at that time?
I was there as Under Sheriff.

Did you confider*yourfelf at that time as under any
obligation to Sir Elijah Impey ? ; ’
I did, as under great obligations to him,

Did you compile the account of all the proceedinga
contained in the book printed by Cadell,under the tidle
of Nundocomar’s Trial?

I did.

Did you compile the whole by the dire&ion of the

Judges? .
I did. CI

Did the Judges approve of the whole contents of that
book as it now ftands? ’
I underftand they did ; and I have lately applied to
Mr. Cadell, in order to know whether he had the ori-
ginal copy in his poffeflion.—He had it not; but he
then fhewed me his authority for printing it, which is
a letter in the hand- writing of Mr. Juflice Hyde, figned
by all the Judges 1 think, declaring the trial to be authen- Vide the avtho-

z s 2 i . rity to Mr, Ca=
tic, and authorifing him to print it, -del), fyord by

all the Judges,
as afferted by Sir Elijah Impevemorz evidence of the full concurrence of Sir R, C, The
authority is confined to printing the trial of Nandocomar,

The witnefs defired to explain a part of his evi-
dence given on a former day.—I was afked,.
whether the trial was printed at Caleutta? and I
anfwered, no.—1 beg leave to add, there were no ::"“*e-h“::‘;“:"f‘
printers or printing at that time in Calcutta, mor pmdﬁ'. N f"

$ill fome time afterwards.’ 17,0

And then he was direfted to withdraw.

[Pl
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No. 8.

Mr, james Durnford called in, and examined.

WAS you clerk to Mr, Juftice Le Maiftre in the
2 Jome 17758

Did you ever fee the indiGtment againft Nundoco-

mar for forgery in the hand-writing of Mr. Juftice Le
Maiftre ?

I believe not.

" Are you fure you have not feen it?

1 am not quite fure that I have'not feen it, but I be-
lieve I have not.

Do you know who drew that indiCtment ?
I do not.

Did you ever make a fair copy of it yourfelf?
T do not recolle@t that 1 did.—Perhaps I may have
done it, but I have no recollettion of it at this time.

Did you ever fee it as it ftands in pnnt?
I have not.

?What time do you thiak it would take yor to copy
it

I do. not recollect the length of i :t, it is fo long fince
Ifawit.

And then the witnefs was dm:&sd tl_ﬂmhdraw.
‘To report a progrefs, &c. )
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Veneris, 2.9° Die Februarii, 1788.

Commuttee of the whole Houfe on the' Articles
of .Charge of High Crimes and Mifdemnea-
nors, prefented to the Houfp againft Sir
Elijah Impey, Knight, late Chief Juftice of
the Supreme Court of Judicature at Fort
William in Bengal.

EDWARD BABER Efquire, called in, and examined,

THE report from the Committee on the petition of

John Touchet and  Joba Irving, agents for the
Britifh fubje@s refiding in the provinces of Bengal, Bu«
har, and Oriffa, &c. being referred to;

Part of the evidence given by the witnefs before
the faid Comamittee, as ftated in the faid report,
pages 62 and 63, wis fhewn to him at the bar,
and is as follows:

¢ Your Committee again examined Edward

¢ Baber Efquire; who faid, he was at Muxa-

-
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dabad at the time of the execution of the

Mar Rajah Nunducomar, and belicves that

event ‘was much difcufied among the patives

of that city.=~And being afked, what opinion

the natives entertained of the application of

the Englith criminal law in that cafe? faid, =

that it was a very fevere application, and it e of
cqufed a good deal of alarm.~—And being afked, Courc which

From what particular circumftanceg did thag '¥'td snd con-

alarm arife? faid, He apprehended “‘“,thcrh?;il:;:;;fm

~alarm arofe from the ignominy as well as fe- forgery, on thy

verity of the punifhment of crimes not deem- * Geo. IL.
.25 and

¢ ed capital with them, and the fear that the gg,ci che Pro

law might be applied to caufes however re- ceedings,

. mate =~=Being afked, What was the rank of Vide the pra-

cendings, App,

¢ the Mar Rajah Nunducomar in that country ? 1 x5,
" ¢ faid, He was a Biamin of the firft rank, and
* his flacion had been allo the firft in the go-

' {P] 2 * vernmept,
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vernment, t;nmely, piime minifter fo the Na-
bob «f Bengal.—~And being afked, What was

.the general moral chara&er of the Mar Ra-

jah among the natives ? anfwered, A very bad
one.-—And being dfked, If the people were not'
very much pleafed to find a.man of that high
rank apd that bad moral:chara&ter brought
to ftriét juftice for his offences ! he faid, He
believed that however much he might be dif-
liked, the trying him by the Englifh laws
was not at all pleafing to them.~Being afk-
ed, Whether moft of tae offences that are
capital by the law of England are capital by
the laws of Indoftan ! faid, They are not.—
And being aftked, 1f, from his knowledge of
the country, he thought that the punithments
allotted by the law of the country to offences
were fufficient to preferve peace and good or-
der ! faid, He did ; and for this reafon, that
he has frequently heard from the natives ac-
counts of the commendations of the regula-
tions and good order of the police of the
country, before the Englifh had any concern
with it.==Being afked, Whether he thought
the natives confidered a capitsl punifthment
was more than ncceffary for an’ offence like
that imputed to the'Mar Rajah Nunducomar ?
faid, They certainly did confider it as fevere,
beca.ufc, exclufive of the peculiar reverence
they pay to a Bramin, the crime itfelf, com-
misted by one of the loweft caft of rank, is
not capital.—Being afked, If there was not
much tranfaction 1hrough the ‘medium of
writing, and greatly affecting properiy of all
kinds in that country " faid, Yes —And be-
ing afked, Would it nét’ :énd‘greatl to the
fecurity of that property, and confequently
to the increafe of ‘the commerce and welfare
of “that couritry, if this crime of forgery was
punifhed in a feverer' #rianner than it is ufually
punifhed in the cauhtry courts ¢ faid, That

in his opmion he did not think it would.—

¢ And
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€ Anod being afked, Whether this. fevere pu-
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nithment is not much defired by perfons in
trade, or coneerned in money tranfattions ?
faid, He daes not think it is ; and thinks he
may add, that they would be better fatisfied
if their own cuftoms continued, than to be
obliged to adopt feverer laws.—Bzing afked,
If the Englith law, which infliéts capital pu-
nithment on various kinds of felonies, under
their various defcriptions, would not be ac-
ceptable to the natives, as affording a further
fecurity to property ? faid, He does not think
they would; on, the contrary, he believes
they would be fhocked at the various defcrip-
tions of our capital punifhments.— Being afk-
ed, In what manner he conceives our laws of
traniportation would be applicable to the ftate
and maoners of that .country? faid, He
thought it would be worfe than the capitad
punifhments, becaufe the Hindoos had much
rather {uffer death than be promifcuoufly put

on board a tranfport, as criminals, where.

every law of religion, their manners, and
cultoms, muft be violated.—Being afked, If
he knew or had lheard that it is ulual to fen-
tence criminals in certain cafes to labour on
the public works ? faid, He knew it is the
law and.cuftom of the country.—Being afk-
ed, If he ever heard that the men fentenced
to this punithment in Calcutta were fet at i~
berty by the authority of the Supreme Court ?
faid, That he bad heard this a¢t much talk-
ed of by the natives of Muxadabad, who
fpoke of it with great furprife and apprehen-

Jdion; and amongft the Europeans, it was

confidered as mad an a& as that of Don

Quixote fetting fice the galley flaves.—Being

atked, If this aét did not produce many ill
effe@s in the'country ¢ faid, He did not know,
be was, abfent froim Calcutta at the time, but

"that he had heard that many of the. inhabit-

ants of Calcutta waintained private guarde'
- [P]3 ¢ of

w3
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‘of their own, to prote& their houfes and pro-
perty.—Being afked, If he had not heard tbat
the Khoran admiits of a compofition for feve-
ral offences, and even for murder ? faid, Yes.
—Being afked, If that licence bas not pro-
duced great milchiefs within the province ?
faid, I*Fut that he knew of.—Being afked, If
murder was a common crime in Bengal, or
the other provinces ! faid, ‘He does not think
it is; they are far from 2 fanguinary people,
and very averfe to fhedding blood.—Being
afked, Whether, from his knowledge of the

_manners, cuftoms, and difp.fitions of the

people, he thought it would be a matter of
extreme difficulty, or perfe@ly odious, to in-
troduce a trial fimilar to that by jury in the
native courts ! faid, That arbitration is a
very common and a very ancient praltice
amongft them, which being fomething of
the nature of a jury, might perhaps be
modified to fomething fill nearer to it,—
Being afked, If he ever heard that Rada
Chund Metre, a2 Gentoo, was condemned
at the court of oyer ‘and terminer at Calcytta
for forgery, previous to the arrival of the
judges of the Supreme Court of Judicature ?
faid, Yes; he was not executed, he was re-
commended to his Majefty’s metcy by the
Governor General and Council, at “the
requeft of the inhabitants, and réceived the
King’s pardon.—Being afked, If he knew
upon what ‘grounds he’ was recommended to
mercy ? faid, That the petition fully ftated
it.— Being afked, If there bad been “any for-
mal promulgation of the heads of the Englifth
criminal Jaw to the natives of the provinces,
or any abltra& publifled under authority, in
any of the country languages, of the Eng-
li[l civil and criminal law, or of the modes
and rules of pra®ice in the Englith courts ?
faid, Never, that he heard of.—Being afked,
As he was chief of & provincial divifion, c?uI:
¢ fuc



No. 9. APPENDIX

¢ fuch a promulgation have been made without
¢ his knowledge ? faid, Certainly not.”

And then the witnefs was afked,

Did you in fubftance give that evidence before the
Sele@ Committee,. and do you abide by it ?

And the witnefs lhaving perufed the evidence
now fhewn to him, faid as*follows :

May I be permitted to fay, that I was at Muxada~
bgd, 100 miles from Calcutta, not only at the particue
lar period of this tranfalion, but for a confiderable
time before and after; that I know not of any of the
falls that relate to the profecution or the condemna-
tion of Nundocomar ; but what 1 had the hoaour toftate
to the Sele€t Committee, and which I here confirm,
related to the general operation and the general applica-
tion of tbe Englifh penal laws to the natives of India?

Do you then confirm that evidehce !
1 do.

And then the witnefs was dire@ed to withdraw.

No. 10.

Major RENNEL called in, and examined.

The report from the Committee on the petition of
John Touchet and John Irving, agents for the Bri-
tith fubje&s refiding in the provinces of Bengal, Ba-
bar, and Orifla, &c. being referred to;

Several parts of the evidence given by the wit-
nefs before the faid Committee, as ftated in the

faid Report, pages 52 and 60, was -fbewn to
him at the bar, and is as follows :

< Major Rennel alio informed your Com-
¢ mittee, That the Gentoos are attached to
¢ their culloms and manness in a remarkable
* degree—That they tend to keep them fe-
ik [Pls ¢ parate
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¢ parate from- gll the reft of the world<=That it

_n.o,ﬁ',lln_gnn.:.a-;.nqq-a.lan,na,a-u‘.l\nga.n.unn.sa

i

is very much againft theie inclinations to ab-
fent themlelves from theic places pf refidence,
and that few occafions can make them remove
to any diftance from their -native fpot—That
he confiders the inhabitants of Bengal, Bahar,
and Oriffa, as a people in a ftate of <iviliza-
tion hardly inferior to that which prévails in
Great Britain, in refpe@ to manners—That
their behaviour to each other is exceedingly
polite—That they difcover nothing of that
ferocity vifible among fome of the lower or-
ders of men in Europe-—-That they are ex-
ceedingly fervile to their fuperiors, and- be-
have with mildnefs and lenity to their inferi=
ors, as far as relates to their exterior deport-
ment ; but that the lower people, when they,
have bad. the alcendency over Europeaans,
have always behaved with infolence—That
even fince the provinces have been in total
fubjection, the inhabitants have manifefted
the utmoft impatience under our government -
—That in the courfe of his duty, as Sur-
veyor General, he was often attacked by
people belonging to Zemindars, partly, he
imagines, with the view of plundering him,
and pastly becaufe they looked upon him as
an intruding firanger—T hat he does not ima-
gine there are a thoufand natives who unders
ftand Englith, and that they live in the prin-
cipal cities, and ferve as interpreters to Eu-
rope: ans—That Hindoo women never appear
in_the public funétions of their Zemindaries,
or on any other ocnﬁons, that it would
bring difgrace upon’ their caft—That during
bis thirteen years refidence, he never faw a
Rajah or Zemindar’s wife,” excepting one,
‘whéy was going ta burn herfelf oo her huf-
band’s funeral pilee—That he remembers an

.mﬂ:an.ce, when. ap offirer of govegnment be-

ing about tp,meafure the. ground on which an
Hmdoo s houfe ﬂ:uod, after fome fcufle, broke

-* open
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open the door of the zemana, or women's
apartment, upon which the mafter of the
houfe immediately deftroyed himfelf, by cut-
ting his throat; and that he has alfo heard
upon the very beft authority, of another in-
ftance, in whicn an Hinduo’s houfe being on
fire, and a multitude affembled in the ftreet,
the mafter of the houfe, rather than expofe
the women to the view of the multitude,
thruft them into an inner apartment, and
was there burnt to death with them,’

| A A A AR A Ao A

¢ Your Committee again examined Major
James Rennel, who faid, That at the time
of the execution of the Mar Rajah Nundu-
comar, he was at Dacca; that it occafioned
much furprife and terror on the minds of the
natives there.— Andl being afked, What opi-
nion they entertained of the application of the
Englifh criminal law in that cafe ? faid, They
were apprehenfive the Englith law would im-
pute crimes to them which they did not un-
derftand ; and that the execution of Nundu-
comar was adegree of punifhment fo novel
and unexpefled, that, pending his trial, and
till his execution, nobody fuppofed he would
be executed —And being afked, If they did
not know that forgery was a crime? faid,
They certainly knew it was a crime, but ne-
ver deemed it a capital ‘one ; nor was it ever
fo punifhed in their courts.==And being afk-
ed, Whether the opinion of the people at
Dacca, that Mar Rajah Nunducomar would
not be executed, arofe from an idea that it
would be impoffible to obtain jultice againft a
perfon of his rank and power? faid, That
amongft the lower fort of people he believed
it did ; but the better fort imagined that it
was meant to terrify otbers from committing
fosgery by proceeding to fentence—He had
¢ long ceafed to be a man of power.”

T T I I R L L L T

: And
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And then the awitnefs was afked,

Did you 4n fubftance give that evidence before the
Sele&t Committee, and do you abide by it ?

And-the witnefs having perufed the evidence now
fhewn to him, faid,

That was the gviderice I gave, and I abide by it.
And then the witnels was directed to withdraw.

To report a progrefs, &c.

No. 11.
* Mercurii, 16° die Aprilis 1788.
Committee of the whole Houfe on the Articles
of Charge of High Crimes and Mifdemeanors,
prefented to the Houfe againft Sir Elijah Im-

pey, Knight, late Chief Juftice of the Supreme
Court of Judicature at Fort William iu Ben-

gal.
Mr. THOMAS CADELL, bookfeller, called in,

and examined.

WHA'f‘ are thole papers which you have there?
The trial of Nundocomar, publithed by the
authority of the Supreme Court of Judicature in Bengal.

And the faid book, intituled, ¢ The Trial of Maha

- Rajah Nundocomar Bahader, for forgery ;” pub-
lifhed by authority of the Snpremelgoutt of Ju-
dicature in Bengal, was delivered in.

Then the witnefs was afked, .

Have you that authority here which was given to
you ?
~ T'have,

When
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"Wihen 8id you receive that authority ?

Tn a letter from Mr. Elliot, dated London, May 3d,
1776.

T he ‘witnéls delivered in the faid letter ; as alfo a
letter from the Judges to Mr. EHiot, dated Fort
William, 1oth Auguft 1775; and a letter fiom
Mr. Macleane to the witnefs, dated Harley Street,
4th May 1776. -

The faid letters were read, and are as follows :

* Sir,
¢ When I quitred Bengal, Sir Elijah Impey,

¢ the chief juftice of Bergal, authorized me to
¢ fay, that the trial of Mahah Rajah Nundoco-
* mar was drawn up from his and the other
¢ Judges notes,
¢ London, «1am,

£ May 3d, 1776. ¢« Sir, &c.

¢ ALLX. ELLIOT.

. ¢ To Mr. Cadell,

- ¢ Bookieller,
¢ in the Strand,’

¢ Sir,
¢ We give you full power and permiffion to
print and publifh, if you tnink proper, the
tral of Maha R.jah Nundocomai, 28 au-
thentic from the copy which has been deli-
vered to you.
¢« We are,
¢ Sir,
¢ Your moft humble Servants,
¢ Fort William, < E. IMPEY,
¢ Auoguft 10th, 1775, ¢ ROB. CHAMBERS,
¢« 8. €. LE MAISTRE,
¢« JOHN HYDE.
¢ To Alexander Elliot, Efquire.’

. B oA A

¢ Sir, _
¢ In :a;'e any perfon fhould queftion the au-
< thority by which you have publiflicd the ?’s:}

119
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¢ of Nundocomar, and the other trials, viz.
¢ that, of Radachurn and the Meflrs. Fowke,
¢ this is to’ authorize you to-fay, that thefe
¢ trials have been tranfmitted to’ me from the
¢ beft authorities in Bengal, and -that 1 #m-

¢ power you to make ufe of my name in fay—
¢ -ing fo. ‘

‘[ am,
¢ Harl'ey Street, ¢ Sir;
¢ 4th May 1776, ¢ Your humble Servant,
¢ L. MACLEANE.
¢ Mr, Cadell.

And then the witnefs was afked,

Did not you publith fome other trizls of Nundoco-
mar and others, befides that now delivered in?

I publifhed fome other trials; and I think Nundo-
comar’s was amongft them.

Why did not you bring thofe other trials with you ?

I underftood the only trial that it was expected I
fhould bring here was that trial of Nundocomar, which
1 have now brought,

What made you underftand that }
Both from Sir Gilbert Elliot and Sir Elijah Impey.,

On what occafion did Sir Gilbert Elliot apply to you
for any trial ?

I was ferved with ap order of the Hou{'e, and I
waited on Sir Gilbert Elliot.

When? .
When [ was firlt ferved with the order of the Hoge;
and I withed to know to what I was to be ¢xamin

- Are you fure that Sir Gilbert Elliot made any dif-
tm&mn between one trial and the others ?

No~—1I am not certain as to that; but I underftood,
from the order of the Houfe, that the trial I have now
brought was the only one I was to bring,

Did you underftand fo from the order of the Hou['c,

or fro your cenverfation with' Sic Gilbert Elliot ?

1 under-
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T underMtood it both from Sir Gilbert Elliot and Sir
Elijab Impey. * '

Whether all the trials are not ufually bound up to-
getber in one volume? ;
Generally together—alfo feparately.

Did you underftand fror Sir Elijab Impey that only-

the trial for forgery was to be brought ?
I did.

On what occafion did you receive that intimation
from Sir Elijab Impey ?
I underftood from Sir Gilbert Elliot that my pre-

fence was no longer neceflary—1 was then informed by _

Sir Elijah -Impey that it was neceflary; and in con<
fequence of that I attended this day, to authenticate
the publication of that trial. .

On what day was it ydu received that intimation
from Sir Elijah [mpey ? :
I cannot fay.

"Was it Jately ?

1 had a note from Sir Elijah Impey, to remind me
to attend the Houfe, to authenticate the publication of
that trial,

Have you the other trials here—very near?
Yes. .

You will withdraw, and bring them to the com-
~m'itze,
The witnels withdrew.

lnd being returned, he delivered in- a E!ook, pub-
lithed by himf{clf, containing the faid trial of Nup-
docomar for forgery; and alfo the tr_ial of Jofeph
Fowke, Francis Fowke, Maba Rajah Nundo-
comar, and Roy Rada Churn, for a confpiracy
againft Warren Haftings, Efquire; and that of
Jofeph Fowke, Maha Rajah Nundocomar, and
Roy Rada Churn, for a confpiracy againft Ri-
chard Barwell; Efguire; to which are prreﬁxc:ll
ever
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feveral depofitions, and an examipatiort into the

claim of Roy Rada Churn to the privilege of an

ambaffador, as Vakeel of Mubatick ul Dowla.
And then be was direCted: to withdraw.

PHILIP FRANCIS, Efquire, 2 member in his
place, being called upon to know, Whether he would
confent to be examined upon the matter of the charge
againft Sir Elijah Impey, relative to Nundocomar ?

Mr. Francis informed the committee, That he had
put into writing the fubftance of what he had delivered
to the Houfe in a fpeech on a former occafion, in
anlwer vo that part of Sir Elijah {mpey’s defence which
he confidered as an accufation againft him on the fub-
je& of the petition of Nundocomar, burnt by the hands
of the common hangman ; and he now offered a copy
of the faid fpeech to the committee, and defired that
they would permit bim to deliver it in, and that they,
would order it to be entered on their minutes.

Which the committee not agreeingto;

Mr. Francis informed the committee that he was
ready to be examined. ;

And he was examined accordingly, as follows :

Did you intend by your motion for bufning the pe-
tition of Nundocomar, and by your minute of the 16th
of Auguft 1775, to exprefs an opinion, that the con-
tents of the petition were falfe; or, did you intend to
exprefs any opinion whatever refpeciing the condu& of
the Judges, or any of them, in the trial of Nundo-
comar ? -

On that occafion 1 meant to avoid exprefling any
opinion whatever on the condu@ of the Judges; ard
neither on that, or any other occafion, did I ever
exprefs an opinion, that the contents of the petition
were falfe.

What did you mean by the word ¢ libelloys,’ in
your minute of the 16th of Auguft?

I meant 0 make a difflin@ion between an accufation
which fuppofes, and is produced by an accufer, and
which is properly an accufation, and an accufation

without
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- . - .
without an-acculer, which, in my apprehenfion, is a

libel. By accufer, I meani 2 perfon refponfible for the
charge contained therein,

What did you mean by ithe expreffion ¢ wholly un-
¢ fupported i’

The paper came before the Governor General, and
Council without a refponfible accufgr, without a wit=
nefs or evidence of any kind to fupport it.

What did you mean by the expreflions ¢ I therefore
¢ hope its being deftroyed iin the manner propofed will
¢ be fufficient to clear the chara&ers of the Judges, fo
¢ far as they appear to be attacked in that paper ¢’

After the motion for burning the paper was agreed
to, Mr. Haftings objeéled, that a copy of it neverthe-
lefs flood upon our records, and by that means would
find its way to the Court of DireQors, to his Majefty’s
minifters, and to the public, As I thought thar that
paper, whether true or falfe, was no evidence againft
the Judges, it was my opinion that it ought not to
make any impreffion againft their characters, 1 there-
fore propofed, that even the entries of it fhould be ex-
punged. I did not mean to fay, that the charaéter of
the Judges would be gbfolutely cleared, but condition-
ally, that they would be cleared fo far as they appeared
to be attacked in that paper—That qualification was
cautioufly and intentionally put in by me. In this
part of my evidence, when I fpeak of the charaéter of
the Judges, 1 refer fpecially to the trial and execution
of Nundocomar. '

Have you ever exprefled your fentiments in confulta=
tion on any other occafion refpecting the circumftances
which conftitute 2 libel?

Yes—In the month of March preceding I delivered
to the Council a Perfian paper from Nundocomar, the
contents of which I did not particularly know. Mr.
Haftings objeéted to my condu@ ; and afked, How did
I know whether I had not prefented a libel to the
Board, or to that cffet. My anfwer to that part of
his minute was recorded in the following terms:

2 Extra&t
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Extra& of a minute of Mr, Francis, March, 21ft,
1775-

The Governor General, who had long expefted the
appearance of fuch a letter, and was apprized of the
contents of it, made no objetion however 1o its being
received and read at the Board, When the man who
advances a fpecific charge declares himfelf ready, to
come forward and fupport it, and to hazard the con-
fequences of failing in his proofs, ‘it may ftill indeed be
prefumed that the charge is falfe, but it does not para
take of the nature of a libel. A libeller advances
charges which he does not intend, or is unable to make
good: When called upon to appear and produce his
evidence, he fhelters him(elf fometimes in the obfcurity,
fometimes in the fuperiority of his fituation, and leaves
the zccufation without an accufer, to operate as far as
it can in the opinions ‘of men iagainft the honour and
reputation of the party accufed. Rajah Nundocomar
is not an obfcure perfon in this country, nor does he
in this inftance at the part of a libeller: He is
himfelf of very high rank, he publicly accufes the Go-
vernor General of mifconduét in his office, and defires
to be heard in perfon in fupport of his charge,

Had you any other reafons, befides thofe exprefled
in the minutes, for moving to burn the petition of
Nundocomar ? '

Undoubtedly I bad,—My fecret predominant motive
for propofing to deftroy the original paper produced by
General Clavering, .was to fave him and him alone
from the danger to which he had expofed himfelf by
that rath incopfiderate altion ; yet the flep I took was
not immediately taken on my own fuggeflion. ' As
foon as Mr. Haftings propofed that a copy of the paper
fhould be fent to the Judges, Colonel Monfon ftarted
atit, and defired me to go with_him to another room.
~=tle then faid, *¢ I fuppofe you fee what the Gover-
¢ nor means, If the Judges. get poffeflion of the pa-
« per, Clavering may be ryined by it.”  Myanfwer
was, ¢ Why, what can they do to him?” ""To that
be replied, *¢ I know not what they cin do; but fince

* they
12
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¢¢ they bave dipped their hands in blogd, what is there
‘¢ they will not do?"w-He then defired me to move
that the .eriginal paper fhould be deftroyed by the
hands of the common hangman.

What do you mean by *they?

I fuppofe it means the Judges —the Court in gene-
ral—but I muft add, that certainly, in his contempla-
tion and mine, the perfon efpecially alluded to muf be
Sir Elijah Impey,

What reafon had you for fuppofing that Colonel
Monfon particulatly alluded to Sit Elijah Impey, when
you fay, that by the word ¢ they,” was meant the Court
in general

" And the queftion bieing waived for the prefent;

Mr. Francis proceeded jn his anfwer (o the quef-
tion refpeiing his reafons for moving to burp
the petition of Nundcomar, :

He then defired me to move that the original paper
thould be deftroyed by the hands. of the common hang-
man, This fhort converfation paffed very nearly, [
firmly believe, if not precifely, in the terms in which
I have related it.

Then the queftion being repeated, What reafon had
Jyou for fuppofing that Colonel Monfon particularly
alluded to Sir Elijah Impey, when you fay, that by the
word * they,” was meant the Court in general ?

Mr. Francis faid, The word © they’ muft literally
apply to the Courtsmit is a form of fpeech; but I can
have no doubt but that in Colonel Monfon’s applica-
tion, and in my apprehenfion of it, it muft relate fpe-
cially or principally to Sir Elijab Impey.

Whence do you derive that idea, that Colonel Mon-

fon's application muft have related to Sir Elijah kmpey?

From our converfations on the fubjeét, in which we
had in our own minds invarably fixed on Sir Elij;::
Impey the principal lesd in ‘the proccedings of ¢
Court, wlugl" we thought fevere to Nandcomar.—I[

[Ql do
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do not.mean to fay that we acquitted the other Judges
of all blame, but we knew that Sir Elij#h lmpey,
both by his place, authority, and temper, had a very
confiderable dominion over the Court. .

Did you agree with Colonel Monfon in the ap-
prehenfions he exprefled of danger to General Claver-
ing from the paper ?

Yes.—1 thought on his firft fugpeftion, and agreed
with him in opinion, that if the paper fhould be
tran{mitted to the Judges, it might fubje& him to a
profecution for a ltbel againft the king’s court of
juftice, the confequence of which might be very diftrefl-
ing, if not ruinous to him—my obje&, therefore, as
well as that of Colonel Monfon, was at all events to
get rid of the original paper.

Do you know what were the reafons of General
Clavering for notyreading the petition of Nundcomar
before his execution ?

No:

Had General Clavering, and the majority of Coun-
cil, made any applications on former occafions to the
Judges in favour of Nundcomar?

Yes, feveral times. o

Mention the inftances, and what was the fuccels of
thofe applications ?

On the 8th of May 1775, a petition was received
from Rajah Nundcomar to the Governor General and
Council, which concludes with the follewing words:
—<¢ The honourable Prefident, 1 am weli aﬁ'ured, is
fully fenfible of the falts I allude to.—It may be re-
quifite to explain to the reft of the Honourable Mem-
bers of the Board, that the inftitutions of our religion
ftri&ly enjoin a number of ablutions, prayers, and
other ceremonies, to be performed by the fe& of Brah-
mins, before tley can take any kind of food.~No-
thing of this can be performed in the piace where {
now. am; and could even thefe obftacles be {urmount-
ed, the place itfelf, as being inhabited -by men of a
different religion, would prevent my receiving any

' fuftenance,
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fuftenance, without breaking'thofe rulcs which T have
bitherto religioufly obferved. I, thercfore, humbly
requelt that | may be permitted to gefide, under as
ftri& a guard as may be judged requifite, in fome place
where thefc objections may be ohviated.”

After a long and careful examination made by the
Board into the truth of this reprefentation. [ moved,
¢ That the fheriff, and his deputy, &'muld be di-
re&ted to wait on the Chief Juftice, on the part of the
Board, to reprefent to him the ficugtion of the Rajah
Nundcomar, whofe relizion, as he had informed the
Board, had obliged him 10 deny himfelf fuffenance.in
the particular circamftances of his prefent confine-
ment ; ard to defire the Chief Juftice would confider
of granting the prifoner fuch relief as might be con-
fiftent with the {tri&k fecurity of his perfon to anfwet
to the charges brought again{l him ;. and .that a copy
of the latter part of the Rajsh's petition to the Bdard

fhould be delivered to the fiieriff.” Colonel Montonw

and General Clavering agieed,

The Governor General (aid, * I objedt to the mo-
tion, becaufe the fame reprefentation may be made by
the prifoner himfelf to the Chief Juftice; and I think,
therefore, it would be improper that it thould be con-
veyed to him through the awthority of government.”

in reply to this meflage, Sir Elijah Impey, in his
Jetter of the gth of May, thought proper to fay, * I
muft make it my requeft, that the Maha Rajah may be
acquainted by the Board, that if he has any further
application to make for relief, he muft addrefs himfelf
immediately to the Judges, who will give all due at-
tention to his reprefentations; for thould he continue
to addre(s himfelf to the Board, that which will and
can only be obtained from principles of juitice, may
have the appearance of buing obtained by the means
of influence and authority, the peculiar turn of mind
of the natives being to expe&t every thing from power,
and little from juftice.”™

In another letter, dated May x5th, 1775, he fays,
s¢ | did not nor do not queftion the authority of the
Board in receiving petitions—1 caréfully reftricted woat

[(Q)2 1 faid
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I faid to this individval prifoner—I dil not defire
bis peritions fhould not be received, but when
received, if they were to rzquire any thing from
the Judges, or the Court, that the anfwers given
to thofe petitions fhould be, that he muft apply him-
felf direftly 'to the Judges;—and this 1 did to avoid
the imputatiory I then alluded to, and which would be
equally derogatory to the charaéter of the Council, as
that of the Judges.”

¢¢ The particular reafon which called upon me in
this cafe to make that requifition, was the reports
publicly circulated in this town, that if the Judges
could not be prevailed vpon to releafe the Maha Rajah,
he would be delivered by force.”

On the 30th of May the Chief Juftice thought fit
to write us a very long letter (on the fubject of our
interpofition in behalf of Nundcomar), in whichk he
faid: ¢ As to communicating petitions to the Judges,
1 apprehend that no Board, even of the higheft autho-
rity in England, can refer any matter either to a court
of juftice, or any Judge thereof, otherwife than by
fuit legally inftituted.” ’
~ On tie 23d of June the Chief Juftice declared from
the bench, that the Govermor General and Council,
whom be confidered as nothing more than as agents
of the Eaft India Company, could only apply to the
Court by humble petition; and that the Court could
not receive in future any letters or meflages but in that
form.

¢ Extra® of a declaration from the bench,
rmade by Sir Elijah Impey on the 23d of
June 1775.

* The Company, 2s well as all other appeliants,
oult mot claim it, but prefer an humble petrions
This being thus explained to prevent any further al-
tercations of this maturs, the Court muft inform the
Board that they cannot (refpect being had to the digni-
ty of his Majefty’s "courts, and the welfare of the
country) receive in future any letter or meffages but in
that form.” - ’
© Qn the 27th of June we tranfmitted to the Judges
a tranflation of a letter addrefied to the Governor Ge-l

S Rera
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neral and Gouncil, in favour of Nund:‘omr, by the
Nabob Mubarick ul Dowlah, Subadar of the provinces
of Bengal, Bahar, and Orixa; titular indeed, for to
that ftatc was he reduced, but the only rightful re-
prefentative of the fovereignty, and fill acknowledged
to be the Nazim, or chief criminal magiftrate of ‘the
country.—Whether the Judges gave any anfwer to
that fpecific application from the Nabbb through the
Governor General and Council, I cannot difcover; I
rather fufpet that as Sir Elijah Impey knew the re-
ference had pafled unanimoufly at the Board, he
thought it beft to take no notice of what he could not
condemn without a cenfure of his friends. On the
20th of June the Governor General and Council had
- refolved to addrefs the Judges in behalf of the Nabob’s
Vakeel, for whom we claimed, as well on the part of
the prince whom he reprefented, as on the part of our
government, by whom he 'was received, the rights and
privileges of a public minifter. Mr. Haftings and Mr.
Barwell diflented, and refufed to fign the letter.

The following is an extra@ from the anfwer which
the Judges feat us the next day by a Mafter in Chan-
cery.~—¢ That the Court is of opinion that all
claims of individuals ought to be made to the Court
dire&lly by the individuals, and not by the authority
of the Governor Geperal and Council.  That it i3
contrary to the principles of the Englifh conftitution,
for any perfon or perfons to addrefs a court of juftice
by letter miflive, concerning any matter pending befgre
fuch court; and that the higher the ftation of the per-
fon or perfons fo addreffing, the a&t is the more un-
conftitutional.”

The unanimous opinion of the Court, de-

livered (on the 1ft of July) by the Chief

- Juftice, in confequence of a letter figned

J. Clavering, George Manfon, P. Francis,

¢ Tt is with the deepeft concern we find the Council

ftill perfift to addrefs the Court by letter on fubjedis

pending in Court, or on ‘which the Court bave given

their opinion ; and that, notwithftanding the frequent

declarations and unanimous opiniu; u}' the Court upon
the j i that mode of addrefs.”

i [Qls Ifaid
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I faid before that I did nmot know pofitively what
wete General Clavering’s reafons for not téading or
producing the petition of Nundcemar before his exe~
cution.—If I may be allowed toijudge of them from
circumftances, and from conjeflure, it appears to me
beyond a doubt, that he thought that any farther ap-
plications from us in behalf of Nundcomar wpuld do
no good.—He Inight have other motives. .-

Have you and the other members of the majority ex-
prefled your opintons in confultations, or in your
public difpatches, ‘eicher befoie or atter the 16th of
Auguft 1775, concerning the conduét of Sir Elijah
Impey, or any cther of the Judges, in the trial of
Nundc.mar ? "t il

THere are feveral minutes of ours, written both
before' and after the exécution’ of Nindcomar, in
which our opinicn of the real princ¥ple and purpofe of
that “proceeding is very ftrongly and ‘very explicitly
declared. ' B gl BN g

Minute of Mr. Francis, April 24th, 1775.

] beg leave to obferve, that a profecution for a
confpiracy is now inflitured, or is intended to be in
ftituted, againft Maha Rajah Nundcomar and others,
the tendency of which feems to me to be to prevent
or deter him from procceding 1n making good thole
difcoveries which be has laid before the Board. I can-
not but think that the Eaft India Company, and con-
fequently this Board, have a very great concern in
every ftep taken in that profecution, whether it be
a&ually begun, or intended.” : :

Minute of General Clavering, 8th May 1775.

¢ 1n reply to what the Governor General has juft
faid, I conceive that the proteétion of the inbabirants
of Bengal is immediately trufted to our care; and that
it properly belongs to us to seprefent to the Judges
fuch matters as may appear to us wherein they have
aéted improperly, either wilfully or ignorantly.=—In
the prefent inftance, they probably are ignorant how
much a clofe ¢ohfinement may endanger the life of
this man, which is of fo much importance to the pnb}ic

or
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for provihg an accufation which he has made, of ve-
nality in the Governor General,”

Extra of a minute of Clavering, Monfon, and
Francis, September 15, 1775,

“ After the death of Nundcomar, the Governor,
we belleve, is well affured, that no man who regards
his fafety will venture to {tand forth as his accufer.

* On a fubjed of this delicate nature, it becomes
us to leave every honeft man to. his own refle@ions.
It ought to be made known, however, to the Englifh
mation, that the forgery of which the Rajah was ac-
cufed muft have been committed feveral years; that in
the interim he had been protefted and employed by
Mr. Haftings ; that his fon was appointed to one of
the firft offices in the Nabob's houfhold, with a falary
of one lack of rupees; that the accufation which ended
in his deftru@ion was not produced till be came for-
ward and brought a fpecific charge againft the Gover-
nor General, of corruption in his office.”

D? of De.
¢“ We agree with Mr. Haftings, that not only he
himfelf, but many ether perfons in this fettlement,
have reafon to thank God, as he expreffes it, for the
inftitution of this Court.”

De, dated 21ft November 1775.

¢ It feems. probable {uch embezzlement may have
been univerfally pradtifed. In the prefent circum-
ftances, it will be difficult, if not impraéticable, to
obtain dire& proof of the fafts. The terror im-
prefled on the minds of the natives by the execution of
Maha Rajah Nundcomar, is not to be effaced; for
though he fuffered for the crime of forgery, yet the na-
tives conceive he was execated for having dared to pre-
fer complaints againft the Governor General.

“ This idea, however deftitute of foundation, is
prevalent among the natives, and will naturally deter
them from making difcoveries which may be attended
with the fame ‘faral confeguences to themfelves. Pu-
nifhment is sfually intended as an example to prevent

[Q] 4 the
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the commifion of erimess in this inftince, we fear,
it has ferved to prevent the difcovery of them.”

s De, 2:ft March 1776.
¢ Some of the fafls with which he (Mr. Haftings)
has been perflonally charged, have been proved; the
prefumpsive evidence in fupport of the reft will, we
apprehend, lofe ndne of its force by the precipitate re-
moval of Maha Rajah Nundcomar,” ,

Has Sir Elijab Impey exprefled in any official corree
fpondence an opinion that you and the other members
of the majority had given a teftimony favourable ta
their condu& in the trial of Nunducomar, by your
motion, and by the minutes of the 16th of Augufk
17751

Never to my knowledge; on the contrary, Sir
Elijah Impey’s letter to the Secretary of State, dated
the 20th of January 1776, appears to have been
written on purpofe to vindicate his charaller from
alperfions uniformly thrown upon it by Clavering,
Monfon, and Francis, for bis condué io the bulinefs
of Nunducomar ; to charge them with having con-
ftantly imputed to the Court the moft atrocicus mo-
tives for their condué, by ftrong infinuations, ma-
lignant farcafm, and fevere cenfure ; and to accufe us
of attempting on fundry occafions to over-awe or re=
duce the authority of the Supreme Court.

I beg leave to read a few fhort paffages out of this
Ietter.

.¢¢ 1. The Governor General has, within few days,
communicated to me feveral minutes, figned by
General Clavering, Colonel Monfon, and Mr,
Francis—They are feverally fraught with direct
charges or plain infinuations againft the charalters of
the Judges, and the condu& of the Court of Judica-
ture~Some feem more particularly levelled at me.

¢ 2, The crimes either direélly charged upon the
Judges, or indire@ly infinuated (which I think we
have more reafon to complain of as being lefs liberal)
are of fo horrid and deteftable @ nature, that if they
were well grounded ought to fubjeét each of them ta
the highet pupifhment a parliamentary impeachmeng

can
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ean inf&; and brand their names with infamy to the
lateft pofterity.

¢« 3. I do fintcerely attribute the offenfive parts of the
paragraphs to imaginations heated by party difputes;
and entertain fo high a fenfe of the honour of the
gentlemen, that, at a period fome diftance from the'
events, which fhall have given time for their judgments
to cool, they will themfelves be thocked at what they
bave wrots, and be willing to retraét the charges,

¢ 4. A public notitication is profeflcdly made to the
Engl:th nation, by whiche it is attempted to perfuade
them, that a court of judicature, eftablithed by his
Majefty for prore&ing the natives of this country, and
the Eaft India Company, from the violence and op~
preflion of the Company's fervants, has hbeen by the
gudges converted into an execrable infirument in the

ands of Mr. Haftings, of deftroying the innocent
native for the fake of protetting the guilty fervants of
the Company.

* 5. It fhould be known, that the conduét of the
Council to the Judges, and to the prifoner during his
confinement, had raifed an univerfal belief in the na-
tives, and even among the Europeans, that the prifoner
would be protefted from juftice in defiance of the
Court.

«¢ 6. Raja Gourdafs (fon of Nundcomar) has caufed
it to be intimated to me, that he was very defirous ta
pay his refpects to me, but is pofitively enjoined (he
muft mean forbidden) entering my houfe by members
of the Council.”,

1 fhall read but one fhort paragraph more out of
this letter.—To underftand it you thould know, that
in one of our minutes we had faid we were ignorant
of any attempt to over-awe or reduce the authority of
the Supreme Court.—In anfwer to this Sir Elijah
fays '

& I muft refer to the letters fent me by the Council
in May laft, concerning Nunducomar—the letter ad-
dréfled 1o Mr. Jufdice Hyde and Juftice Le Maiftre—
the univerfal tenor of ihe minutes of the Council,
whenever the condud of the Judges made part of their

onfyltations,””
coniyltation Da
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Do you undereftand that the oath of fecrecy, taken
by the members of Council in their feveral depart-
ments, admitted of any commubication to {’trangeu,
on impofing a fimilar oath on fuch firangers? -

I do not remember the terms of the oath, byt my
opinion of it is, that we were not at liberty to com=
municate the proceedings of the fecret department, in
the terms of the queftion, except to our private fecre-
taries, or others neceffary in the difpatch of our bufiy
nefs——that was unavoidable; when we did fo, we
bound them by the fame oath. This is all [ recolle&
on the fubje&. 1 am not fure, but I think, that to-
wards the latter part of my contipuance in the Council,
the taking of this oath by the members of the Council
fell into difyfe,

What do you underftand to have been the fecret de-
partment, propetly fo called, of the government of
Bengal ?

The fecret proceedings are ftyled by that title at the
head of them. ’

Whether, from the terms of the oath, as far as
you recolleét, it was a breach of the oath, or a breach
of duty, to cornmunicate to apy perfon a paper pro-
duced before the Board, under an oath that he was
not to communicate it; and more particularly fill, if
it was to a point that did nat properly belong to the

“fecret depariment of government?

By communicating to flrangers, .in my former an-
fwer, I meant {trangers in India, not letters to Europe,
on which there was no reftraint that I know of ;—
with refpect to the diftin&ion ftated in the laft queftion,
it is very difficult for me to dgcide for the fcruples or
confcience of another.—Spezking for myfelf only, I
think, that if it was once refolved, and mech more,

“if I myfelf agreed to enter any particular proceedings

in the fecret department, 1 was bound to keep it

_fecret in the (pirit of the oath. It has been fuggefted

to me that there was a latitude in the oath, which
might include perfons not in the relation of fecretaries
or affiftants —| cannot take upon myfelf to fay that
others might not bonf fide underftand it fo.

What



No. 11. APPENDIX.

What effe@ had the trial ind execution of Nund-
comar on the enquiries carried on by the Board into
his accufation sgainft the Governor (general ?

I think that in effe& it defeated them.

What effet had it on other enquiries of the fame
nature into the abufes and corruption of the Com-
pany’s fervants, or others? »

As to abufes committed by the lower ranks of the
fervice, it might pofibly not atteél them, but I am
convinced that it did imprefs a general terror on the
natives, with refpe& to preferring accufations again(t
men in gieat power.—They were naturally afraid to
appear, and we were very unwiiling to expofe them
to whar appeared to them and to us a manifeft
danger.

Did there appear in your obfervation any, and
what degree of connection, between Mr. Haftings and
S8ir Elijah Lmpey, in the year 1775? )

It appeared tec me that there did {ubfift between them
a very clofe intimacy and conne&ion.

Were the accufations of Nundcomar agéinﬂ' Mr.
Haftings generally, known and talked of at Cal-

cutta?
Yes—it could not be otherwile,

Are you in poflcffion of a copy of any part of the
proceedings in the indiGtment of Nauderah Begum and
others, for forgery, in 1779, and of the opinion de-
livered by Sir Robert Chambers on that occafion, on
a motion for quathing that indi&tment ?

Sir Robert Chambers gave me a book containing his
opinion en that occafion,

The committee was moved, that an extrad of &
letter to the Court of DireQors, dated Fort Wil-
liam, 2d Auguft 1775, and figned E. Impey,
R. Chambers, S. C. Le Mciftre, J. Hyde, might
"be read. i

And the fame was read, and is as follows:
' ¢ Add
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(*) Add to this, that the continual obli-

tion of defending every a& we do, how-
sver regular, which thefe Gentlemen (igno=-
rant of the grounds of our proceedings, and
not fuppofed, by their ftations, to be much
converfant with law) may conceive 1o be
wrong, muft keep us in a perpetual ftate of
difquict ard uncafinefs, and totally take away
that refpect and veneration which the people
ought to entertain of the perfons and judge
ments of theif magiftrates, of which, at pre-
fent, we feel ourfelves te be in full poffeffion,
and which we attribute, in a great meafure,
to that confidence neceffarily arifing from
feeing that our judgments have, in every in-
{tance, been unanimous, whatever reprefent-
ation may be made to the contrary.’

Then the book given to Mr. Francis by Sir Robert
Chambers being delivered in, the following paffage
was read from the opinion of Mr. Juftice Cham-
bers, dclivered by him in the Supreme Court, on

the

motion for quathing the indiétment againft

Nauderah Begum and others, who were indiéted
on the ftatuie 2 Geo. I, cap. 25. for forging,
publifhing, &c. two deeds in the Perfian lan-

guage.

L4
L
L
L4

[

¢ 1. To the firft of thefe objefions, that the
ftatute: does not extend to this country, and
to all the arguiments delivered by Mr, Tilgh-
man in fupporst of it, Mr, Lawrence has given
one concife and general anfwer, viz, that this
point has been already decided.

¢ Now it is true, that there have been in this
country two convictions upon this ftatute:
the firft was that of Radachurn Metre, an in-

(*) Read from No. 19, in No. § of the General Appendix to the Re-

ort from the Commitiec to whom the petition of Jobn Touchet snd
ohn Irving, ageats for the Biitith fubjeéts rchiding 1o the provinces of
<ogal, Bahar, and Oriffs, wap refersed, ' '

¢ habitant
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# habitant of Calcutta, who wis apitally con-
¢ vifted thereon in the year one thotfand feven
¢ hundred and fixty/five, and afierwards par-
¢ doned; but that trial was before judges whofe
¢ decifions we are not ufed to hear cited as of
¢ authority, becaufe in falt they neither were,
¢ nor pretended to be much acquainted with
¢ law. The other was® the convittion of
¢ Nundcomar, who was tried before this
¢ Court; and to any opinion declared by this
¢ Court no man can pay more deference than 1
¢ do, even when 1 am fo unfortunate as to dif-
¢ fer from my brethren.
¢ It is alfo true, that in this laft-mentioned
cafe the queflion whether the flatute
2 Geo. I[. now extends to this country, did
undergo fome difcuffion; for though no mo-
tion was made for quafhing the indi@ment
by the prifoner’s advocates, 1 did myfelf, when
he was brought up to be arraigned, propofe
in court that it fhould be quafthed ; and gave
my reafons, which (as it frequently happens
in all courts) were not thought convincing
by my bsethren, though they had convinced
me.
¢ But I fuppofe I need hardly inform Mr,
Lawrence, that no one decifion of any court,
particularly concerning the exercife of a power
in any degree difcretionary, ought to be con-
fidered as fo binding and .conclufive, that
either a judge or an advocate {fhould be re~
ftrained from maintaining a doctrine contrary
thereto, upon any cale newly arifing. For
my own parr, I hold myfelf bound to give
my opinion on this objettion, although ano-
ther may, 1 believe, be founds fufficicnt to
quafh the indi&tment, becaufe it appears to
¢ me to be of importance, both to the prifon-
¢ ers, and to others whe may hereafter be in-
¢ dicted on the fame flatute; and becaufe
¢ think, that where life is concerned, no opi~
¢ nion

& A n & a2 p "R Ao
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¢ nion ‘deliberately farmed fhould be with-
¢ held.’

Then Mr. Francis faid,

I beg leave to add, that Sir Robert Chambers, in
tonverfation with me, has repeatedly affirmed to me
the fame fa&@, of which indeed | had other information,
and has repeatedly complained of the injuftice done to
bim, and to his charater, by the total omiflion of all
mention thereof in the printed Trials,

From whom had you that other information of Sir
Robert Chambers’s opinion ?

I cannot particularly fay from whom, but it was
publicly known, -

Can you account for the circumftance, that after Sir
Robert Chambers had given an authority under his
hand to print the trial of Nundcomar, from a copy
accompanying that authority, how he thou'd afierwards
complain that he was ill ufed, in his opinions being
left out in that copy?

I pofitively aflert the fa&, that he did fo complain 1
I am not bound to account for the whole of the tranf-
aflion ; but my belief is, that Sir Robert Chambers did
conceive that the printed trial was not a true and com-
plete copy of the manufeript trial, to which, as the
queftion ftates, be gave his affent,

Did you not, on a former occafion, declare that you,
General Clavering, and Colonel Monfon, made a great
diftinion in yoeur opinion of the judges ;=that they
had a perfe& grod opinion of Sir Robert Chambers';
that they confidered Juftice Hyde as a good man; but
they looked on any thing as improper and mifchievous
which came from Sir Elijah Impey, and anly doubted
whether Mr. Juftice Le Maiftre was not too much
under Sir Elijah impey’s lead ;—and whether, in con-
fequence of that opinion, your principal reafon for
condemning the petition of Nundcomar as, a libel was
not that it invelved the whole Court ? ,

I will fate precifely what 1 faid.—1I afferted then, as
I affert now, that it was a libel on the whole Court of

Juftice,
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Juftice, in the &ri& and proper fenfe of the'word. The
dreadful cifarge contained in it included all the judges,
cofcerning two of whom (Sir Robert Chambers and
Mr. Hyde) we never had a fufpicion of the motives
which ge attributed to Sir Elijah Impey, though I am
far from acquitting them of all bhlame. Concerning
another of the Judges, the late Mr, Le Maiftre, though
we faw him united in the clofeft injimacy with the
Chief Juftice, and ready to fupport his opinion on all
occafions with a degree of zeal and paffion, which,
however fincere, was not to be excufed, yet in that
which conftitutes the deadly guilt of the tranfa&ion,
we never fufpefted him to be concerned ; in a confe-
deracy, I mean, with Sir Elijah Impey, to take off
Nundcomar, in order to fave Mr. [laftings from the
effect of that man’s evidence.

Did you, in any one minute of yours, or declara-
tion, or in angr official tranfaClion made in Bengal
refpe@ing the Supreme Court, difcriminate Sir Elijah
Impey from the reft of the Judges?

I do not recolle& that we did, nor do I think we
could=—the a&, on the face of it, was the act of the
Court; but it appears plainly that we did make
the diftin@ion I have lately ftated, for even Sir Elijah
Impey himfelf fays, * Some of the charges feem par-
ticularly levelled at me.”

Did you, on a former occafion, declarc in this
Houfe, that your apprehenfions and Colonel Monfon’s
were for General Clavering’s perfonal fafety ?

I faid, our apprehenfions were for General Claver-
ing’s fafety ; whether I faid perfonal fafety or not, I
cannot pofitively affirm, but 1 am ready to fay now,
that if it had been poffible for the Court to have given
that aét a conftru@ion by which General Clavering’s
perfonal fafety could be affeéed, I think he would
have been in great perfonal danger—1I am fure his for-
tune would have been at ftake; the Judges were all
powetful, and gave whatever ipterpretation they thought
fit to their own jyrifdiction.—We were no lawyers,
and had no lawyers to affiff ws.—Sir Elijah Impey,
foon after the #pprehenfion of Nuadcomar, had en-

8 deavoured
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deavoured so fix an imputation which gulﬁqu refate
fous, and among us principally, toahe Commander in
Chief, that there was a determination to refgue Nuld-
comar by force.~General Clavering was¥o slarmed st
it, that he rhought it neceflary to make an 2 it'in
Council, that be never had conceived, or ofy
fuch an intention in any perfon=—if fuch a charge could
have besn fixed on him, 1 am fure be would have been

in very great danger indeed.

Did not you know, by the exprefs words of the
charter, that the members of the Council were not
Tiable to bearrcfted in their perfons, bur for treafon or
felony ; and did you not lirewife know, they had the
whole power, civil and military, in their hands?

I know that the law and the charter gave us that fe-
curity ; whether it would have been a real one or not,
if we had fallen into any legal fnare, I very much
doubt. The queflion {uppofes that we had the whole
civil and muilitary power at our cominand—I beg leave
to ftate to the z:'ommittcc what our fituation was (==
we were 2 bare majority of the Council, and were
publicly declared by Sir I'lijah Impey, from the Bench,
to be nothing more than agents of the Eaft Indi« Com-
pany.~~We had againit us the Governor General, who
was the firft, »nd executive Magiftrate of the Govern-
ment, and another member of the Council—We had
againft us the Chicf Juftice, and in effett the Supreme
Court—We had aganft us another powerful bady in
that fettlement, called the Board of Trade, cosfifting
of the Company’s fenior fervants=——We had againft us
in general all the reft of the fervice, and almolt all the
Europeans of every defcription—~This was the predi-
cament in which we three ftood alone, with very few
exceptions indeed.—The caufe in which Mr. Haftings
was concerncd was confidered as the caufe of the whole
fettlement—Y ou cannot judge whether our apprehen~
fions were well or ill founded, unlefs you could place
yourfelves in our fituation—T his at leaft is certain, that
if Sir John Clavering, in that ftate and temper of the
Tettlement (I mean at that time, for it altered after-
wards), had been indi@ed and found guilty of a lidel,
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the Supgeme Court might have fined him his whole
fortune,, which Ke muft have inftantly paid down—
his remedyy if any, would have been by an appeal to
the King and Council in this country..

When and where had Sir Elijah Impey the daring
infolence to affert, that perfons appointed by a Britith
A& of Parliament (the fame authoriy under which he
himfelf acted) were mere agents of the Eaft India
Campany ?

On the 23d of January 17%5, the Chief Juftice
declared it from the Bench.

¢ (*) The Lord Chief. Juftice’s Reply to the
¢ Refolutions of the Governor General and
¢ Council,

¢ The Court with very great concern perceive,
that a meflage fent by the firft Officer for the
purpofe of preventing a correfpondence, which,
if carried on, muft end in altercation, has been
efteemed by the Council 2 want of refpect in
the mode of delivering it, and has produced that
very altercation, which in the firft inflance
ought to be ftopped ; thercfore the Court will
not make one fingle obfervation on the want of
addrefs to the Court, or the fubje& matter of

which may be of fo much confequence to tne
public, in our opinion a¢t with the moit diznity,
and deferve beft of the public. The ifiue of
this bufinefs fufficiently evinces the impropriety
of the mode of application by the Governor
General and Council. If the Company thought
it right to 2pply, there are but two modes in
¢ which it cculd be properly done. Though
¢ peither the Crown nor the Company bave an
¢ Attorney General,, the Company has a ftanding

A A AR A AR AR R
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® Read from a book intituled, Besgal Aopendix, No. 32, E. being
Extraé of Secret Conlultatiops, Fort Witliam, 26th June 1775.

[R] ¢ Counfel;

their papers. Thofe who firft end a difpute,

ae
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¢ Counfel; a motion might have been made by
¢ that Counfel. If they did not think proper to
¢ joftru@ their Counfel, but meant to addrefs us
¢ themfelves, the pgoper mode was by petitign ; it
¢ is the mode the charter has preferibed for the
¢ Eaft India Company, whofe agents the Gover-
¢ nor General and Council are: an appeal, under
¢ the circuniftances prefcribed in the ad, is a
¢ matter of right, to prefsrve that decency necef-
¢ fary in application to his Majefty’s Court of
¢ Juftice. TheCompany, as well as all other
¢ appellants, muft not claim it, but prefer an
¢ humble petition; thofe are the words of the
¢ charter ;-—it is a falle point of honour to decline
¢ it; there is nothing humiliating in it, it is
¢ mere matter of form. This being thus ex-
¢ plained, to prevent any further altercations of
¢ this nature, the Court muft inform the Board,
¢ that they cannot (refpet being had to the dig-
¢ nity of his Majefty’s Courts, and to the welfare
¢ of the country) receive in future any letters or
¢ meflages but in that form.’

When the Court ufes this exprefion, ¢ the Eaft India
¢+ Company, whofe agents the Governor and Council
¢ are,’ do you underftand that to imply an affirmation,
that the Governor General and Council are nothing
more than agents of the Eaft India Company?

Not generally—but with refpet to the point in
quedtion, namely, addrefles from the Governor General
and Council to the Supreme Court—it is my opinion
that the words rneant to convey, and do convey, that
they confidered us in no other light than as agents of
the Eaft India Company ; and that we muft proceed,
as all other fuitors did, by humble petition.

Whether, at the period in which you have defcribed
the Company’s fervants to be united againft the majo-
sity of the Supreme Council, who were in fact the
Government, the Governor iffued any one order to the
army which was not faithfully obeyed ? Al
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All the'orders to the army were figned by all the
snembers of the Council; and I have no doubt but
they were obeyed,

if an order had been ilTued by General Clavering,
i Commander in Chicf, to any one corps compofing
the army, in confequence of inftru&ions from the ma-
jr.;:'av.y, do you think that that order w8uld not have been
cheyed ? .

17 the order had been figned by us three alone, with-
cut the names of Mr, Haltings and Mr. Barwell, and
it 1t had been at the fame time intimated, as in that
vale it undoubtedly would, that it was an illegal order,
or againft the fenfe of the Supreme Court, and that
tnerefore it had not been figned by Mr. Haftings and
Mr Barwell, T then am of opinion, and I ftate it only
Ay on opinion, that it would not have been obeyed ;
" :t that was an extremity that we had too much regard
to our duty, and to the fafety of the great Government
¢ mitted to us, ever to think of hazarding,

1¥id you know the late Mr. Elliot ?

Yes.

id you know hig family and connefions in this
couetry ?

i had no connedtion with them, but I knew who
they were,

‘What was the general charalter of Mr. Liliot?
4., far as I know he bore a remarkably good one,

172 you conceive it poffible, that Mr. Elliot would
‘rave fuffered a trial to be printed which was particus
iarlv intrufted to him, and at which trial be had him-
telt interpreted, without taking care that it was ftriétly
agrecable to the copy which he had received from the

udges ? '
’ ! was very little acquainted with Mr. Elliot; but I
d¢ firmly believe, from all that I have heard of his
charaéter, that he was incapatle of being party to fuch
« fraud: if there was fuch a fraud, my belief is, that
he was impofed on ; that is, that the copy to which Sir

Eobert Chambers gave his affent was not precifely and
Ra completely
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completely the copy delivered to Mr. Elliot.-~This is
only my opinion : I can ftate nothing more upon it.

What reafon have you for that opinion ?
1 can ftate no other reafon for it but the perfe& good
charater that young Gentleman bore.

From your converfation with the natives in general,
and the inhabitants in general of Bengal, what was the
general charaéter of Nundcomar ?

And the queftion being objected to;
To report a progrefs, &c.

THE END.



ERRAT A

Vage 33 line o for material, read matecials,
83 —— § for oppreflion, read oppofition,
24 —— 22 for woulll have, read wibl,
26 —— 6 for perufed, read penned.
41 —— 21 for province, read provinces,
39 —— 23 for tells, read tell
39 —— 29 for gives, read gifk,
40 — 14 for judgment, read judgments,
§ == 24 for words, read word.
3 = lafl, for leticr, sead aletter,
63 — laft but one, for iay, read lie.
67 —— laft but one, for Clavering and Colonel Monfon §
and, read Clavering, Colouel Monfon, and,
80 —— 7 for of, read for.
80 —— laft, for wroit, read written,
93 — 23 for to, read or.
95 inthe margin, for 134 read 3.
304 =~ 2 for lordihips, reaa lordthip,
10§ laft but three, Jor ipoke, read fpoken,
107 = 36 for queftion, read queftions,
113 = 23 for Ro, readl Ru,
121 —— 3 for years, read days.
124 — § for wrote, read written,
32§ —— 30 for Maharsjah, read Mohun Perfaud,
130 = 13 for wrote, read written,
%35 —— 10 for Nunderah, read Nauderah,
339 —— laft but one, for as to, riad of.
139 — laft, and, read but,
157 — 1 or by its, read ns.
157 = 6 for from extending, read extending,

258 —— in the fac fimile, beginning is omitted.
358 — laft but one, mie fhould b erafed.
359 —— 12 and joining with fhould ror be erafed.
164 —— 5 for from extending, read extending.
164 —— 22 for from extending, resd extending.
173 — laft but three, for are thofe, read thofe.
177 —— 8 forto, riad fhould,
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